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To,
The Members of,
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Edelweiss
Comtrade Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (‘the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generaily accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its loss including other comprehensive loss,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements ‘section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics ‘issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Ruies
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include
the Standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perfo"rmed,;-:»\\
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we conclude that there is.a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Financial Statements. '

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionat skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
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we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,; ' .




R 4 gfaﬁa & gﬂ.

Gllerrtcred CCleccumdeents
(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company with reference to these Standalone financial statements and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A
to this report;

(g) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of records of the company, the company has not paid/provided any
managerial remuneration during the year under review;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as amended in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895W]
Chartered Accountants

. 7
-~ Q&M\C«)
OHIT K. CHOKSI
Partner
Mem. No. 31103

Place : Ahmedabad UDIN : 20031103AAAABY7720
Date : 24" June, 2020
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Annexure - A to the independent Auditors’ Report of even date on standalone Ind AS
financiat statements of EDELWEISS COMTRADE LIMITED

(i (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals having regard to size of company and nature of its assets. According to
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

() The company does not have any immovable property and accordingly ciause 3
(i)(c) of the order in not applicable on the company.

(i) The company does not hold any inventory as at the end of the year. Accordingly, the
clauses 3(ii)(a) to (c) of the order are not applicable.

(i) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any

loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the

Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, wherever
applicable with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and securities.

(v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits as defined in The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government

under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the class of

companies to which the Company belongs.

(viy (a) According to the information given to us, the Company is generally regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues and Company
had no arrears of such outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2020 for a
period more than six months from the date they became payable, other than
those stated below :

Period to
Nature of | Amount in | which the
Name of the | Dues Rs. amount Date of
Statute relates Due Date Payment
The Maharashtra | Stamp 2.69,140 | Financial Year | 10" —
Stamp Act Duty 2019-2020 September,
2019
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no
disputed outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2020 other than those stated

below:-
Period to which
Nature of | Amount in | the amount | Forum where
Name of the Statute | Dues Rs. relates dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, | Incometax | 1,12,21,744 AY.2012-13 & CIT(A)
1961 AY.2013-14
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 585,426 | F.Y.2004-2005 to CESAT, Ahmedabad
F.Y.2011-2012

(viiy According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have
any loans and borrowings from financial institutions, banks, government or dues to
debenture holders during the year.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has also not raised money by way of term loans
during the year under review.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by company or any
fraud on the company by its officers and employees have been noticed or reported
during the year.

(xiy According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided any managerial
remuneration during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the reiated
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and details of
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into non-cash ‘transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
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(xvi The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO,
[Firm Registration No. 101895W]
Chartered Accountants

,
buie LU
ROHIT K. CHOKSI
Partner
Mem. No. 31103
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN : 20031103AAAABY 7720

Date ' 24" June, 2020
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Annexure B
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss
Comtrade Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference_gg\ these
Standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
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regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with
Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these Standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the intemal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.
fFirm Registration No. 101895W]
Charfered Accountants

ol 6’
ROHIT K. CHOKSI
Partner
Mem. No. 31103
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN : 20031103AAAABY7720
Date : 24" June, 2020




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Bzlanece Sheot

[Currency ¢ Indlan rupeesin thousands)

ASSETS

Financial assets

{a) Cash and tash equivalents

{6} Dank balznces other than cash and cash equivalents
{d) Trade racelvafles

{e) Loans

(g} Other financial assets

Non<inancial assets

{a} Current tax assets {ney)

|b} Defarred tax assels {nzt)

{¢} Feaperty, Ptant and Equl pment
{g} Other intangible assets

{Is) Qther non-financlal assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUTTY
LIABWLITIES

Ftnanetal Ynbilitles
{a) Trade payables

Notes

[ LT, WS 1L A N

EEww

(¢} total outstanding dues of misre enterprises and small enterprises

{il) Tata! autstamding dues of creditors ather than micre
enterprises and smail enterprises

{b} Borrowings [other than debt securities)

(c} Other financialitabilitics

Non-financip! tabilitics
{a} Provisions
|b} Other non-Sinancial liabilities

EQUITY
{a) Equity share capltal
(b} Diher equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES ANG EQLITY

12

i3
14

16

EE)
18

Significant accounting pollcias forming part of Lha Finonela! statement t

This Is the Balsnce Shaat referred to in our report of even date

For G, K. Choks! & Co,
ierered Aceountonts
5 Reglstration ho, 101B35W 2

Maca: Ahmedabad
Datet June 24, 2020

Asat Asat
Mareh 31,2020 March 31, 2019
38,566.20 18,15390
9,557.14 1,550.31
7,822,57 7,828.75
76.76 204.68
5,867.20 4,39,767.50
56,889.87 4,75,545.13
9,603,91 5,497.16
1,812.81 6,262,33
245.88 75052

5.01 10.09
5,336.83 B,492.20
17:508.43 21,014.31
BA,098,30 4,96,559.44
18,578,898 3,45,523.00
26,731.93 1,07,496.93
3,820.83 2,946.26
49,131.73 4,56,566.19
212,09 416,27
552.54 250,60
1,174.63 3,406.87
2,90,000.00 2,90,000.00
(2,55,208.07) J}LS?.,BB.EZ)
33,791.93 26,186.38
84,008,30 4,96,553.44

Eor and on behalf of the Board offfikrectors

”
nafesh Mandon
Exacative Director
DIN : D7627485

AN

Dj
'ﬂlﬁef Financiel officer

Place: Mumbai
Date:June 24, 2020

Y

T.K. Ramaswamy
Direetor
DIN : 05158707

3

Kamlash Gular
Company Sccretary




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Statement of Prefit and Loss M

{Currency ¢ Indiaa rupaes in thausands)
torthe Year cnded  Far the your erded ‘

Nore March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from opetations
interestincome 15 18,146.76 27,411.20
Fee and omm(ssion Income 70 63,670,564 5%,553.81
Other operating revenue 21 (579.83) -
Total Revenue from operdfions ¥9,237.57 86,955.04 :
|
Other incama 22 5,170.74 5,096,38
Total Income a1z 92,08L41 B
Expenses
Flnpnce eosts 3 18,123.70 21,34D.25
tmpalrment on financiat Instruments F2) 1,999.41 1,438.20 |
Emplayee banafits sxpanse 5 22,405.3% 41,652,78 HF
Depreclaticn, amortlsatian and impajrment 810 296,52 515,00 :
ather expenses 6 36,385,421 54,310.42
Totol oxpenses 79,260.74 1,19,405.75
Profit bofora tak 5,151.57 {27,344.33}
Tax expenses: :
Curreat tax [637.49) 43681
Defarred tax 444551 122771}
frofit for the Yoar 1,339,55 (27,553,53)
A
Iterms that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
fomeasuremaent loss on defined beneflt plans {3,734.00} {342.00}
Dther Comprehonsive income [3.730.00) {342.00}
Total Comprehensive income {2,354.45¢ {27,895.53}
Earnings per equity share (Face vafue of ~ 12 aach):
{1} Baslc 28 0.05 {0.95)
{2} Diluted 0.05 {0.35)

This is the Statement of Profit and 1oss referred to In our repart of eyen date

Far G. K. Choksi & Ca. Forand on behall of the Board of Dirdetgrs
Charzered Accountonts
Firm's Registration o, LOL895W

2N S

. . ’
RahitK Cholai Rajesh Mendon X, Ramaswamy
Partner Exceutive Director Direclor
- wMemborship Mo: 31103 BIN : 07627485 DIty ; 05158707
Dirtuch Thadank Komlesh Gujar

Chief Financial officer Compuny Scoreiery

Place: Ahmedabad _ Piace: Mumbal
Date: June 24, 2020 3 Dates fune 24, 2020




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited
Statement of changes in equity

{Currency : Indian rupees In thousands)

A} Equity share capital
Balance ot April 01, 2018

Changes In equity share eapltal {Shares issued during the

year)

Balance at Mareh 31, 2019
Changes in equity share capital
Bafance at March 31, 2020

B} Other Equity

Partizulars

Balance ot Apell Q1, 2018

Loss fav the yanr

Cther comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive income for tha year

Balance at March 31, 2019 (Ind A5)

Prafit for the year

Qther comprehenslve Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Balanze st March 31, 2020 {ind AS}

For G. . Choksl & Co.
Chorlarsg Accotntants

flace: Ahmedabad
Date: June 24, 2020

2,90,000,00

2,90,000.00

2,93,000.00

Deemed copitol Retalned Earnings Total
cantribution - ESOP

2,514,14 [2,28.432,23) {2,25,918.09)
{27,553.53) {27,553.53}
(342,00} {3f2.00}
- {27,885.53) {27,895.53)

2,514.14 {2,56,327,76) {2,53,813.52)

1,539.55 1,339.58
- {3,731.00) {3,734.60}

- {2,394.45} (2,394.45)

2,514.14 (2,58,722.21) {2,56,208.07}

Eor and ot hehalf of the Board of Directors

G

Rajesh Mendon
Executive Divecior
CIN ; 07627485

Dinesk Thadani
Chicf Financio! officer

Place: Mumbal
Date: June 24, 2020

(3l

T.K, Ramaswamy
Direeter
DIN : 05158707

3

Kamlesh Gujar
Compuny Secrelory




Edalwolsy Comtrade Umited
Consli Flrwy Stateanent

[Currancy : indian rupoes In thousaads}

A Cashfiow lrem eperaling activitios

Profiz/Loss belore lax

Adjustments far

Depreciztion and amestizatlon expenses

Provisian far expected eredit lass an trade racalvables
Loss/ (Profit} on salef write-off of fixed apsets [net)
Interest intome

Interest expanie

Qperating cash fow balers warking eapital chonges
Adjustments for workiag copito! changes

Other camprebensive Income

Deerease/ {incraase) In brade racelivahles

{Inrraascl/ Ocerease In loans and athor financlzl assats
Decrease/ {Inerease} in other nan-financlal assets
Increase in trade payables and ather finandial dabiliting
Increase/(Dacreasa) in ather financlal Habikies
|Brecrezsel/increase in non financlat labllldes
(Decrezse}/increase In Provislon

Cash usod in aperations

incame taxes paid

Net rach uzod I opeeating activities - A
B Cashilow fram investing activitins

Purchase of tangibic and Intanglble assats

Sale of fixed assets

Interest cecelved

Net ash {used in}/ generted Trom Investing activitles «B

o

Cacly flaw frem FEpancing activitles

Praczeds/Repayment from unsecured {nan®
Interest paid

Net cash {used In}/ ganoratad from dfnanting actlvitles - C

Net {decreasc)/ Increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+0)

Cash and cash equivalent s at the beginning of the year

Cash and eash cquivaiunt as at the end of the year frefer note 27

Net figures have been reported on account of Voltme of transactions
Thilz is the Cash Fiow Statement referred to In our repart of evan daie
. Choks! & Cn,

¢d Azcopntants
£ Replsteation No, 101835 "
e

Far,&

Tar tlie year ended For the year cnded
Muareh 33, 2020 Muoreh 31, 2019
5,151.57 [27,344.33]
335,82 E15.05
(15,623.15) 143871
{515.03) {237
{653.17) {278.50)
18,123,10 22,378,98
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Edeiweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands}

Cash Flow Statement {continued)

Change in Habilities arising from financing activities

Particulars

Borrowings other than debt securities

Total liabilities from financing activities

Particulars

Borrawings other than debt securities

Total liahilities from financing activities

April 01, 2019 Cash Amount expensed March 31, 2020
flows jn P & L Statement

1,07,456.93 {98,888.12) 18,123.10 26,731.91

1,07,496.93 {98,888.12} 18,123.10 26,731.91

April 01,2018 Cash Amount expensed March 31, 2019
fiows in P & L Statement

2,21,661.88 (1,35,543.93) 21,378.98 1,07,496.93

2,21,661.88 {1,35,543.93} 21,378.98 1,07,495.53




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2020

1, Background and Significant Accounting policies

1.1. Background

1.2,

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited {“the Company”) was incorporated in India on 31 March 1995. The
Company is a 100% subsidiary of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited which in turn is a 100%
subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

The Company is a member of Multi-commodity Exchange af india Limited, National Commodity and
Derivatives Exchange Limited and NCDEX e Markets Limited (formerly khown as NCDEX Spot
Exchange Limited). The Company has ceased to carry on troking business and exploring other trading
business.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The firancial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time).

These financial staterments have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOC!) instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other financiz| assets held for trading,
which have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees
{INR) except when otherwise indicated.

1.2.1 Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

1.3

-

The cutbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe including [ndia, resulting in
significant volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and india’s economic
activities, On March 11, 2020, this outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health
QOrganization. On March 24, 2020, the indian Government announced a 21 — days lockdown which
was further extended till 31st May 2020 across the nation to contain the spread of the virus and still
continues to be acrass many parts of the country in India. The pandemic and its consequent adverse
effect on the economy also adversely impacted the financial markets.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company’'s management hzas assessed the impact of the
pandemic on its operations and its assets including the value of its investments as at March 31, 2020
based on estimate of the future results and various internal and external information available up to
the date of approval of these financial statements. The estimates as at the date of approval of these
financial results may differ based on the ongoing impact of the pandemic and the timing of the
improvement in the economy and the financial markets , but would not affect the entity materially.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division 1li of the
Schedule 1|l to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settfement within 12
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1.3

1.4,

1.5

Presentation of financial statements(continued)

months after the reporting date (current} and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—
current} is presented in Note 31.

Financial assets and financial llakilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to
settle ona net hasis in all of the following circumstances:

e The normal course of business
= The event of default
e The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

Recognition of interest

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for ali
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCI. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR {and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
censtant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially
different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product fife cycle
(including prepayments, penalty interest and charges),

Financial Instruments

a) Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially

recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises borrowings when
funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

b} initial measurement of financial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
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1.5 Financial Instruments{continued)

are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liakilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or |oss.

C) Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
vaiue in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price
and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

1.6 Classification of financial instruments
2} Financial assets:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

*  Amortised cost
°  Fajr value through other comprehensive income [FVCCI)
® Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL}

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with husiness model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

o if those sales are infrequent {even if significant in value} or insignificant in value both individualiy
and in aggregate {even if frequent).

¢ if such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale apgroximate the
coliection of the remaining contractual cashflow
Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk. _
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1.

6

Classification of financial instruments{continued)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income {except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

the financtal asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By defauit, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

b)

Amortized cost and Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calcuiated by discounting the estimated
future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument
on initiat recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss alfowance.

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments
to be measured at FVOC!, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under ind AS 32
Financlaj Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial liahilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liahilities.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.8.1

Classification of financtal instruments{continued)
Debt securities and other barrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial liabilities and eqguity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its Habilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Campany's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company's own equity instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new asset, with the difference
recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification
does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR,
the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded '
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1.8

1.8.2

1.83

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities{continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (other than due to substantial modification)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets} is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

® The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset: or '

= {tretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass—through’ arrangement

A transfer only quatifies for derecognition if either:
® The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

° The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control ta be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unhilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiiity is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
differant terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised
as new financial liability, would be recognised in profit or loss.
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1.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and lease receivables. The application of simpiified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
litetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. However if receivables contain a significant financing component, the
Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the {oss allowance by applying general approach
to measure expected credit losses.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, The Company
recognises an impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in the profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

1.10 Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real
estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as
netting agreements, Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet.
However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. [t is generally assessed, at a
minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis. However, some collateral, for
example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued
using models.

1.11  \Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

1.12  Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
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1.12

Determination of fair value{continued)

fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or [iability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-finaneial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by seiling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use. The Campany uses vajuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of refevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values
have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
technigues, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments ~Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
guoted prices from active markets for identical assets or {iabilities that the Company has access
to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the velume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance
sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the Inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the
adopted methodologies and mode! calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
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1.12

1.13

1.14

1.14.1

1.14.2

1.14.3

Determination of fair value{continued)

estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting
period.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable} is
measured at transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding
amounts coliected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contract and
its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. Where the consideration

promised is variable, the Company excludes the estimates of variable consideration that are
constrained.

Brokerage income on commodities broking business is recognised as per contracted rates at the
execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of
related sub-brokerage expenses, goods and service tax (“GST”), transaction charges and stock

exchange expenses.
Operating feases

Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019

Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore
comparative information has not been restated. This means comparative information 1s stiil
reported under Ind AS 17,

Company as a lessee:

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 April 2019, the Company considers whether a
contract is, or contains a lease, A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset {the underlying asset} for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.
To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract is or contains lease

Measurement and recognition

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease lability
on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
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1.14

1141

1.14.2

Operating leases{continued)

measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments
made in advance of the lease commencement date {net of any incentives received}.

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end
of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present vaiue of the lease payments unpaid atthat dzte, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease if that rate is readily available or at the incremental borrowing rate.

Subseguent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased
far interest. it is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the carresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is
already reduced to zero

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term
leases of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease
payment associated with these [2ases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term,

In the comparative period, as z [essee the Company classified leases that transfer substantially all
the risk and reward of ownership as finance leases. Assets held under other leases are classified
as operating lease and were not recognised in Company Balance sheet. Payments made under
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual
terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period.
As a lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if it does not.
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1.15

1.16

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of 2quity shares outstanding for the
year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for
the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upsn
conversion of all potential equity shares.

Retirement and other employee henefit

a) Frovident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a
defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net abligation in respect
of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.
The present value of the obiigation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent
actuarial vafuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of gratuity are
funded with an Insurance company approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority (IRDA).

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets {excluding amounts inciuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability}, are
recognised imrediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings thraugh OCl in the period in which they occur,

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

¢} Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their,
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and ioss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumnulated leave entittement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
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1.17

1.18

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that are
granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair vaiue determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in statement of profit and loss such
thatthe cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
’ESQP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting
period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a
different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful
life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting estimates,

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and eguipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred,

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction} less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation Is provided upto the date of
disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated
the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the

Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as
follows:
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1.18

1.18

1.20

Property, plant and equipment({continued}

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Eqguipment 5 years

Computers - Servers and networks b years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
aconomic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount
of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the
timeof replacement thereof, Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, piant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

intangible assets

The Company’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is
recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangibles such as software is amortised over a period of 3 years
or its estimated useful life whichever is shotter,

impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. if any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying
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1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

Impairment of non-financial assets(continued

impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. if at the balance sheet date

there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable .
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum

of the depreciable historical cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and other cantingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
resuit of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, provis]ohs are determined by discounting the expected future cash
fiows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable thatan outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is
disclosed as a contingent Hability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of
resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Incame tax expenses
income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
a) Currenttax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. o
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1.23  Income tax expenses{continued)
b} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary difference,
unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable
temporarydifferences which are expected to reverse in the pericd of reversal of deductible
temparary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this
is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that:

e the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

» tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax Habilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws} that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

c} Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income cr directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are alsc recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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1.24

1,25

1.26

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1.23, the
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revisicn
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those invoiving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPP| and the
business mode| test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how
groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of
the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of
the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in‘business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that

)
1

/ < F
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1.26

1,26.1

1.26.2

1.27

Key sources of estimation uncertainty(continued)

are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
ocCCcur.

impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can he recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.
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{Currency ; Indizn rupees in thousands}

Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 38,566.20 18,153,850
39,556.20 18,153.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits (refer note 37} - 4,000.00
- Short term deposits with banks 9,500,00 5,500.00
- Accrued Interest on fixed deposits 57.14 S0.31
{other bank deposits with maturity less than 12 months)
9,557.14 9,550.31
Trade receivables
Recejvables considered good - Secured 7,223,99 7,107.47
Receivabies considered good - Unsecured 198.55 721.28
Receivables - Credit impaired 5,488.46 21,111.61
12,911.03 28,540.36
Less ; Allowance for expected craditlosses 5,488.46 21,11161
7,822.57 7,828.75
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Notes to the financial statements (Continyed)
{Currenicy : Indian rupees in thousands)
4 Trade receivables (continued)
Reconciliation of impzirment allowance on trade receivables:

Particulars

Impairment zllowance measured as per simplified
approach

Impairment ailowance as on April 01, 2018

Add: asset originated or acquired (net)

Impairment allowance as on March 31, 20198

Add: asset originated or acquired (net)
impairment allowance as on March 31, 2020

19,673.41
1,438.20 °
21,111.61 -
(15,623.16) :

548846

Provision matrix for trade receivables :
Trade receivables days past due 1-90 days 91-180 days more than 180 Total|:

days :
March 31, 2020
£stirnated total gross carrying amount at default: 12,911.03 12,911.03
ECL - Simplified approach 5,488.46 5,488.46
Net careying amount - - 7,422.57 7,422.57
March 31, 2018
Estimated tota] gross carrying amount at default 1,087.88 427.90 27,424.58 28,940.36
ECL - Slmpiified approach {215.71) {265.01) {20,626.90) {21,111.61}
Net carrying amount 868,18 162,89 6,797.68 7,828.75
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‘.
Nales to the financlal stetcmants fcantioved)
[Curtency :Indlan nupeea In thaysapds) *

Gross arrying amaunt ol toss assets aflocatad to Stape 1, Stage ¥, Stage 3.

3i-nfar20 A1-Mar-ig

Particulars Swgel Stage ([ Stagell) Total Stagal Stape )l Stopalll Tetal
Lnans {4t smortised coptt

Perioming
High prade - 204,67 2467

Sangard prade - - - -

Substoncord grade 23197 23197 - - T -

M on-parfarming

Impalred .

Tetal - - 13L3y 23587 284,67 - = 284.67

Recandifatlan of changes in gross carrydng amauncand allsivances for expected cradit lass

Non.credit impotrad Ciedit mpafrad
Steral Stagell Stage Il (5]

Fartleulars

Grass Allowancs for Gross Gitngs ZAtewancs for aress Alowanca for Flowance far

carrving amount E€L carrylng emouny sarsying amaunt ECL carrylnpsmount ECL ECL
A1 a8 April 03, 2018 327,08 :

Tranafers:

Transfers1n 12 Month ECL (3taze 1)

Transfersto Ifetims ELL [Stape 2]

Tranafers te Tfevime ECL- Credit impaivad
{Stape 3}

Nt naw and flrther lendlog) (¢ 82,30 .

[Amounts writteh 8{f inat} - - . N - - - .

Asat March 33, 7019 244.67 - - N - - - -

Cheek {ide while taking prim) - - B

Nonsereditimpalred Cradltimpaires
Stagal Stagall Stzzedll [

Particulars

Gross Allawaznce for Gross Gross Aligwance for Grass Alpwanee far Alewanee far
2ervine pmount ECL rarrylng amount carrylax smount EGL arylog smeunt ECL ELE

iAs 3t AR 01, 2019 244,67 - n - - - - -

Transfors: [244,53) - - 244,67 255,21 - - 155.21

Transfers ta 12 Month ECL (Stipe 7) - -
Tramifers to Rletime ECL (Stage 2} =

Transfers ta [fetlma ECL- Credit impalred 155.21
[Stage 3) 153.22
Hat re-measurement of L5L ariting From T2ma.57]| 2445
traasler of [stape 1§ .

Hetnew and furthers lending/ repayments {1221)| - - -

Amountt written o -
vt of
As a1 Mozeh 33, 70200 FEEE - - 240,67 15520 . B 15521
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands) fil
As at As a{
NMarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
5 Leans 4
(at amortised cost,Unsecured, within India} i
Employee Loans ~ Gross carrying amount 231.97 244.:68:
Less: Provision on restructured advance (155.21) =
76.76 244 88
2] Other financiat assets
Deposits placed with exchange/ depositories ' 3,500.00 3,500.0
Rental deposits - 280.0
Other deposits 70.00 520.0] ]
Receivable from exchange/ clearing house (net) 1,571.00 3,035.8
Margin with exchange/ clearing house 5.00 4,32,430,1
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 4,109.09 1.4
Other assets 612.10 -
2,867.19 4,39,767.50¢
7 Current tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes 9,603.91 5,497.16
' 9,603.91 5,497.16
8 Deferred tax assets {net)
Ceferred tax assets
Trade receivables and Receivable towards Margin trading facility
Provision for expected credit losses 1,381.34 5,489.02
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles ]
Difference hetween book and tax depreciation 282.08 435 0¢
Emplayee benefit obligations
Provision for ¢compensated absences 53.38 108.23
Unused tax losses g
Others {Preliminary expenses) 96.02 226.0
1,812.81 6,262.33
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Wotes tn the finandal statements (Continued}

{Cwerency : Indian rupees In thousands}

93

102

Bh

10m

Praperty, Plont and Equipmant

Azsuimulated Dopr

Net 8lock

Gross Block lazi
Desertation of Assets Asat Additlonsduring  Dlsposals during Asat Asest Chargeforthe  Dlsposcls durlng Asat Asat
p April £, 2012 the year the year Mareh 31, 2020 April 1, 2019 year the year Marth 31, 2020{ March 31, 3 1,&}
Furaiture and Flxtures a1.05 . - 8105 14,01 4.40 - la.41 12.5L
Niotor vehicles 389.EQ - 285,79 - 41280 031 263,22 - 1
O{flce equipment 1835 - - 1835 12.50 248 - 15.37 !.E
Computers 1,448.94 42,15 159.59 1,331.19 59730 334.54 135.01 102583 H#.L
Total 1,887.64 42,25 549.38 1,380,50 1,137.11 301,74 398.23 1,130.62 249,88
Praperty, Plant awd Equipment
Gross Block Accumulated Depraclation Nat Block
Daserlption of Assels Asat Additionsduring  Disposals durlng As ot Asnt  Chorgeforthe  Dispesols during Asat Asgt
s April 1, 2019 the year thp year Mareh 31, 2028 Aprll 1, 2019 yoar the yoar March 21,2020 March 31, 2? |
Computer saltvare 2233 - - 2733 17,24 5.09 . 1233 5.10[]
Total 2733 - - 27.33 17.24 5.09 - .33 504
Praperty, Plant and Fgulpment
Gross Block Accumulated Depraciation Net Block
Description of Assals Asat Additlons durlng  Disppsals during Asat Asat Chargefarthe  Disposals during Asat Asqt
P April}, 2018 the yrar the year March 31, 2040 Apri{3,2018 year tha yoar Moreh 31,2019 Marck 31, 2? ]
Furnlture ang Fixturas 31.05 - - 31.05 a.07 594 - 1400 7.0
Motar vehicles 382.80 - - 389.80 127.2 85.69 - 212.80 176,
Qffice equipment 18.35 - B 1835 8,36 1,54 - 12.90 5]
Computers 1,154,17 362,58 68,60 1,948.94 427,95 509,93 40,58 B97.30 Fi1
Tetal 1,593.36 352.28 68.60 1,8B7.64 571,59 606.11 40.58 1,137,11 750,52
Propcrty, Plant and Equipment
Gross Bloek Actumulated Bapraclation tlet Block
Description of Assens Asat Additionzduring Dlapesals duslag Asat Asat  Chorgofortha  Dispesals durlng Asat At
ApHi 4, 2018 the year the year March 31, 20151 Aprll 3, 2018 year the year WMarch 34, 2048 March 21,2004
Camputer sofiwara 18.70 B.64 - 2732 8,26 B398 - 1722 10109
Total 18,70 8.6% - 7733 8,26 248 . 1724 0
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : indlan rupees in thausands)

11 Other non-financlal assets
{Unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise)

input tax credit

Contribution to gratuity fund (net}

Prepald expenses

Vendor Advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Advances to employees

12 Trade Payables

Tata! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -~
Total outstanding dues to creditars other than miero enterptises and small
enterprises
[includes sundry creditor provisien for expenses and custamer payables)

Asat Asat
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
4,815.82 3,595.01
2,121,00 1,203,00

- 429.24

- 315.78

- 24974.75

. 76.42
5.936.82 8,494.20
18,578.89 3,46,523.00
18,578.99 3,46,523.00
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{Currency : indian rupees in thousands)

13

14

15

16

Borrowings {other than debt securities)
{at amortised cost, within indiaj

Unsceured

toan from related parties

{Repayable on Demand at interest rate 11.60% to 11.75% {Previous Year
B.30% tc 9.50 %

Other financial liabilities

Other payables

Book overdraft
Accrued salaries and benefits

Pravisions

Compensated absences

Other non-financial liabilities

Withholding taxes, Goods and service tax angd other taxes payable

Asat As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
26,733.91% 1,07,456.53
26,731.91 1,07,496,92
3,722.00 423,638
- 253.76

98.83 2,268.81
3,820.83 2,946,26
212.09 416.27
Z12.09 416.27
562,54 2,990.61
962.54 2,380.61
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{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

17

i8

Note Nol.

Asat fear
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Eguity share coplital

Authorised:
29,000,000 {#revious year: 28,808,000} equlty shares of Rs. 1D each 2,90,000.00 2,90,000.00

?‘,*!I],DDU.UU 2.580,000.00
Issued, subscriced and paid up: '
28,000,000 {Previous year: 28,000,000) oguity shares of A2, 10 each 2,90,000.00 2,80,000,0

2,95,000.00 2,90,000.0
iovement in shave copital :

Mnreh 81, 2020 March 31, 2019
Na of shares Ampunt Ko of shares Amaunt

Outstanding 3t the beginning of the year 29,000 2,90,600.00 29,000 2,50,000.00
Shares Issued during the yesr - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year E),DDD 2,80,000.00 29,000 ZE,?D.DDD.DD

Tryms/ righis artozhed to pouiey shares

The Company has only one elass of equity shares having a par value of 10/~ Each holder of equity shares b entitled to one vote par share held. in the event of liquidation of the
Campany, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to reccive remalning atsett of the Company, aftar distribution of all preferentlal amaunts, The distribution wilfbe In
praportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Sharas held by the holding company
31 tviarch 2020 31 March 2019
No of shares % Ko of sharas %
HoldIng cempany -
Edelwelss Rura! & Carparate Services Limited 29,000 0% 29,000 100%
[the halding company and Its nominges)

25,000 100% 28,000 1003%
R Asat Asat
March 31, 2026 Mareh 31, 2019
Cther Equity
Beemed capital contribution - ESCP frefer note 3) 1,514,138 251434
Add : Addltians during the year - -
2,514.14 2,514.34
Ogenlng Balance - Retalned earnings {2,56,327.78} (2,28,432.23)
Add; Prafit/{Lass] far the year 1,339.55 {27,553.53}
Add: Other comprehensive lncome for the year {3,734.00} {342.00}
Ratalnad Easning - Closing Bafance {2,58,722,21) {2,56,327.76)
{2,55,208.07) {2,53,813.52)

Certain of the company's employees have baen granted options to acquire equity shares of the Ultimate Parent Company [Edelwalss Financlal Services Limited).
This reserve represents the cost of these options based on thelr falr value at the grant dates as recognised over the vesting pnriud of such options, to the
extent that the Ulimate Parent Company has not recovered such cost from the Company.
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{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

19

20

21

22

Revenue from operations
[nterest Income

On financial asset measured at amortised cost.
Interest inceme on fixed deposits

interest income ¢n margin with brokers
Interest income - Others

Fee income

Income from Commoaodities Broking
Advisory and other fees

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers:

Seyvice transferred at a point In time
Service transferred ovar time
Total revenue from contract with customers

Other operating revenue

Delayed payment charges

Other income

Profit on sale of property, pfant and equipment and intangible asseis (net)
Miscellaneous income

for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
653.17 649.5
17,493.58 27,131.70
- {370.0¢
18,146.76 27,611.20
61,585.88 59,419.5{
B0.76 134,35
51,670.64 59,553.54
61,670.64 59,553,584
§1,670,64 58,553.84
{579.83) -
{579.83) -
515,03 2.37
4,659.71 5,094,01
5,174.74 5,096,338

R -,
o

2SRt A

L
.
2
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(Currency : Indiar rupees in thousands)

23

24

25

Finance costs
(On Financial liabilfties measured at amortised cost)

Interest an Loan from Holding Company
interest - others

Impairment on financial instruments

{On Financial instruments measured at amortised cost)
Bad-debts written off

Frovision for restructured advance
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

Employee henefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Cantribution to provident and other funds

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)*
Staff welfare expenses

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

for the year ended.
March 31, 2019:

. 21,336.38"

18,123.10

0.60 3.88
18,123.70 21,340.25

17,017.36 -

605.21 -
{15,623.16) 1,438.20
1,999.41 1,438.20
20,796.16 37,830.26
906.80 2,197.50
- 13.68
702.43 1,652.32
22,405.39 41,693.78

* The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”)) has Employee Stock Option Plans in force.
Based on such ESOP schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would
vest in a graded manner to company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair
value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee

cost,
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26

26a

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Auditors’' remuneration (refer note 26a below)

Communication

Insurance

Legal and professional fees
Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rent

Repairs and maintenance
tlectricity charges

Computer expenses
Computer software

Clearing & custodian charges
Membership and subscripticn
Office expenses

Postage and courier

ROC Expenses

Goods & Service tax expenses
Site related expenses

Stock exchange expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Warehousing charges
Housekeeping and security charges
Miscellanecus expenses
Operating losses

Other Expenses

Auditors' remuneration;

As Auditors

For other services

Towards reimbursement of expenses

for the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
14,14 (103.11)
370.00 493.34
1,492.47 1,578.91
111.51 410.25
2,270.91 3,262.51
(42.49) 649,41
26.69 -
5,140.94 6,146.50
1,035.33 451.33
- 1,221.82
146.46 219.93
369.11 171.00
50,00 122.86
9,79 -
13,456.00 26,278.95
- 228.02
4.82 -
45.97 -
5,519.12 5,649.73
1,877.06 1,793.88
1,803.92 2,260.72
1.23 -
- 480.88
1,356.51 2,751.90
230.88 210.88
45.06 38.72
36,335.41 54,318.42
370.00 376.00
- 5.00
. 112.34

493.34
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Notes ta the financhl statements (Cont/nued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

27 Income Tax

27

The components of income tax expensa for the year ended March 31, 2020 and Match 31, 2019 are:

Particulars

Current tax

Adjustment in respect of current incorme tax of
prior years

Deferred tax relating to ozigination and reversal
of temparary differences

Total tax charge

Current tax

Deferred tax

Reconcillation of total tax charge

Particulars

Accounting profit before tax as per financial
Statements

Tax rate {in percentage)

Income tax expense calculated based on this tax
rate

Adjustment In respect of current income tax of
prior years

Effect of non—deductible expenses:

Penalties

Others

Effect of indexed cost being available as
deduction

Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset
on current-period losses

Impact of tax rate changes (between two
accaunting periods}

Tax charge Tor the year recorded in P&L

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2013
(637.49) 43691
4,449.51 (227.71)
3,812,02 210.20
[637.49) 43691
4,449.51 (227.71)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
5,151.57 (27,344.23)
0.25 0.26
1,296.13 {7,109.53)
(537.49) 43691
{960.89) 1.01
3,913.88 6,880,581
200.39 -
3,812,02 210.20

276 The foilowing table shows deferred tax recarded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Movement far the year ended March 31, 2020

Opening deferred | Recognised in Recognised in Tatal Closing deferved
tax asset as per Statement of other movement | tax asset/ as per
Ind AS profit & loss comprehensive Ind AS
income
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Property, Plant and Equiprent and Intangihles 439.00 {156,93) (156.93) 282.08
Trade rageivables 5,489.02 {4,107.68) {4,107,68) 138134
Employee benefits phligations 108.23 {54.85}| - (54.85) 53.38
Others 226,08 [130.05) {130.05) 56,02
Total 6,262.33 {4,449.51) - (4,449.51) 1,812.81
Movement for the vear ended March 31, 2018
Opening deferred |  Recognised in Recognised in Yotal Closing deferred
tax asset as per Statement of other movement tax asset as per
Ind AS profit & loss comprehensive Ind AS
Income
Deferred taxes in refation to:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intanglbles 455.61 (27.60) {27.60) 439,00
Trade receivables 5,115.09 373.93 373.83 5,489.02
Employee benefits abligations 98,97 B.26 8,28 108.23
Others 35296 {12688} | {126.88} 226.08
Total 5,034.61 22771457 CHOHG™ 227.71 6,262.33
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27¢

Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the balance sheet

As at Vlarch 31, 2020

Unused tax [osses

Financial Year to which the loss Unabsorbed Depreciation Business Lass/ Short term capital loss Total
relates to
Amount Expiry year - Amount Expiry year - Amount
financial year financial year

2015-16 8ER8.62 No expiry 2,22,309.03 2023-24 2,23,177.65
2016-17 818.58 No expiry 66,023.01 2024-25 66,841,585
2017-18 705.30 No expiry 48,286.65 2025-26 49,991,958
2018-19 727.58 No expiry 25,767.72 2026-27 26,495,341
2019-20 459,15 Na explry 15,090.19 2027-28 15,549.35
Total 3,579.26 3,78,476.60 3,82,055.86
As at March 31, 2019 Unused tax iosses

Financial Year to which the joss Unahsorbed Depreciation Business Loss/ Short term capital loss Totai
relates to

Amount Expiry year - Amount Expiry year - Amount -
financial year financtal year

2015-16 868,62 No expiry 2,23,177 .85 2023-24 2,24,046.26
2016-17 818.56 No expiry 66,841.58 2024-25 67,650.154
2017-18 705.30 No expiry 49,991.95 2025-26 50,637.25
2018-19 726.33 No expiry 26,494.05 2026-27 27,220.35
2010-11 - 7,400.13 2018-12 7,400.13
Total 3,118.81 3,73,905.35 3,77,024.15,
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28 Earnings Per Share

Particulars
a. Shareholders earnings {as per Statement of Profit and loss)
b. Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares
Number of Shares at the beginning of year
Number of Shares issued during the year

Total no of equity sahres outstanding at the end of the year
dilution ' ‘

Basic earnings pet shara
Diluted earnings per share

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020
1,339.55 {27,553.53) -
29,000.00 29,000.00
29,000.00 29,000.00
28,000.00 29,000.00
0.05 (0.95)
0.05 {0.95)
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23 Segment Reporting

The Company’s business is organised and management reviews the performance based on the business segments as

mentioned below:

Sepment

Agency business

Activity covered .

Broking and Advisory Services

Incame for each segment has been specifically Identified. Expenditure, assets and liakbilities are either specifically
identifiable with individuzl segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis

Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and |iabilities have been prepared

{Amount n Rs.)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March March
31, 2620 31,2018
(Audited) {Audited)
1 Segment revenue {Tetal income)
Agency 84,241.34 91,836.37
Unallocated 170.97 125.05
Total income 84,412.31 92,051.41
2 Segment results [Profit / [Loss) before tax]
Agency 4,380.60 {27,469.38}
Unztlocated 170.97 125.05
Profit / (Loss) before tax 5,151.57 (27,344.33)
Less:
(a) Interest - -
(b} Unallocated net expenditure - -
Total Profit before tax 5,151.57 {27,344.33)
3 Segment Assets
Agency 74,484.39 4,84,789.86
Unaliocated 5,603,91 11,759.45
Total assets 84,098.30 4,96,559.44
4 Segment Liabilities
Agency 50,306.35 4,60,373.05
Unallocated - -
Total ligbilities 50,306.35 4,60,373.05
5 Capital employed [Segment assets - Segment liabilities] -
Agency 24,188.64 24,526.50
Capital Based -
Insurance business -
Unaliocated 9,603.91 11,759.45
Total capital employed 33,791.95 36,186.39
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30.Disclosure pursuant ta Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits

{a) Defined contributlan to provident fund, emplayee state insurance fund and employees death linked insurance

Amaunt of Rs. 1031.80 {Previous year: Rs, 1838.94) is recognized as expenses in "Employee benefit expenses” — Note 25

in the statement of profit and loss

(k) Defined benefit plans {Gratuity)

The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the statement of

prefit and lass, the fund status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benafit plan

March 31, 20191

parch 31, 2020
Presant Value of DBC at Start of the year 4,785.00 4,371.00
Sarvice Cost
a, Current Servica Cost 137.00 472.00
b. Past Service Cost - -
¢. Less/{Gain) from Settlement - -
Interest Cost 78.00 278.00
Benefits Paid {118.00) {259.00)
Re-megsurements - -
a, Actuarial Loss/{Gain) from changes in demagraphic assumptions 3.00 -
b. Actuarlal Lass/[Gain) from changed in financlals assumptions 63.00 33.00
€. Actuarial Loss/{Gain} from experience aver |ast past year 11.00 297.00
Effect of acquisition / (divestiture) - -
Changes in foraign exchange rate . -
Transfer (Qut} {3,627.00} (407.00)
4,785.00
Present Value of DBO at end of the year 1,382,00 !
Reconcifiation of Fair Value of Plan Asset
March 31, 2020 March 3%, 2619
Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year 10,197.00 9,737.00
Contributions by Employer - -
Benefits Paid {118.00) [259.00)
Interast Income Plan Assets 679,00 671.00
Re-measurements . u -
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest an the (491.00) 48,00
ffect of acquisition / {divestiture) - -
Changes In foreign exchange rate - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year 10,267.00 10,187,860
Actual Return on Plan Assets 188,00 719.00|
Expected Employer Contributions for the coming yeor - u
Recanciliation of Asset ceiling
March 33, 2020 March 33, 2019
Assets ceiling at start of the year 4,309,00 3,971.00
Interest Income op Assetsceifing 289.00 278.60
Re-measurements - -
Changes in the effect of Gmiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset 60.00
ceilfing excluding amaunt incleded in net interest on the net defined 3,166.00
benefit liability/ {asset)
Assots ceiling at end of the year 7,764.00 4,309.00
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30.Disclasure pursuant to Ind AS 18 - Employee benefits{continued)
Expenses recagnised In the Profit and Loss Account

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 187,00 472.00
b.Past Service Cast - -
c.Loss/{Gain) fram Settlement - -
Net Interest on net defined benefit fiabillty / (psset) 312.00 {115.00)
Changes in forefgn exchange rate - -
Employer Expenses (125.00) 357.00
Nat Liability / (Asset) recognised in the Balance sheet
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2618
Present Vatue of DOB 1,382,00 4,785.00
Fair Value of Pian Assets 10,267.00 10,197.00
Liabllity / (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet, (8,885.00) {5,412.00)
Funded Status [Surplus/ {Deficit)] 8,885.00 5412.00
Less: Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to 776400 4,309.00
asset celling) e
Net {Liabllity)/ Asset reccgnised in the Balance Sheet 1,121.0G 1,103.00
Of which, Short term Liability - -
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabllities:(Gain}/Loss 11.00 297.00
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Equity instruments 0.0%! 0.0%
Debt instruments 0.0% 0.0%|
Real estate 0.0% 0.0%
Derivatives 0,6% 0.0%
{nvestment Funds with Insurance Company 98.5% 99,5%
GFf which, Unit Linked 72,7% 72,7%
Qf which, Traditionol/ Nen-Unit Linked 28.6% 28.6%
Asset-backed securities 0.0% 0.0%
Structured debt 0.0% 0.0%
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% D.5%
Tatal 100.0% 100.0%
Actuzrial assumptions:
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Salzry Growth Rate (% p.a.) 7% pa 7% p.a
Discount Rate (% p.a.) 5,5% p.a 6.7% p.a
Withdrawal Rate (% p.a.}
Senlor 13% p.a 13% p.a
Middle 30% p.a 30% p.a
Junior 50% p.a B0% p.a
Mortality JALM 2032-14 1ALM 2012-14
{Ultimate) {Ultimate)
Interest Rate on Net DBO/ {Asset) (% p.a.) 6.7% p.a 7% p.a
Expected Weighted Average Remalning Warking Life {years) 2 Years 2 Years
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38, Disclosure pursuant 1o Ind AS 13 - Employee benefits{continued)
Movement in Other Comprehensive Incomne:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Galn 342.00 NIL*
Re-mengsurements op DBG
a.Actuarfal Loss/(Galn) from changes in demographic assumptions {3.00) |
h.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from changed in financials assumptions {63.00) (33.00)
c.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over last past year {11.00) {297.00)
Ae-measurements on Plan Assets - -
Return on plan assets excluding amount including In net interast an the 43.00
_— {491.00)
net defined benefit llability / (asset)
Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling - h
Changes in tha effect of imiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset (60.00}
ceiling excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined {3,166.00)
benefit Kability/ (asset}
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain {4,076.00) {342.00)
Sensitivity Analysis;
DOB increases / (decreases } by March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 54.00 171,08
1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate (51.00) {162.00}
1% Increase in Discount Rate {51.00) {150.00}
1 % Decrease in Discount Rate 56,00 173.00
1% Increase In Withdrawal Rate (3.09) {8.00)
1% Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 3.00 8.00
wartality {Increase In expected ifetime by 1 year) - Negligible Change
Maortallty {Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) . Negligible Change
Movement in Net {Liablity)/ Asset:
WMareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
et {Liability)/ Asset at start of year 1,203.00 1,395.00
Net {Acquisition} / Divestiture - -
Net Transfer (In)/f Qut 3,627.00 407.00
ovement during the yeor - -
Current Service Cost 187,00 [472.00)
Past Service Cost - -
Net Interest on net DBO 312.00 115.00
Changes In foreign exchange rate - -
Re-measurements 3,734.00 {342.00)
Contributions / Benefits - -
Surplus / {Deficit) at end of year 1,121.00 1,103.00




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financlal statements {Continued)

[Currency ; Indian rupees in thausands)

31 Maturity analysis of assets and Habllitles

The tabie below shews an analysis of assets and |iabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled,

March 21, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Within 12 months | After 12 months Total Within $2 months | After 22 months Tatal
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 35,566.20 - 38,566,20 18,153.90 - 18,153.90
Other bank balances 8,557.14 - 9,557.14 9,550.31 - 9,550.3L
Trade receivahles 7,422,587 - 7,422.57 7.828.75 - 7.828.75
Loans 76.76 - 76.76 244.68 - 244.68
Other financlal assets 9,797,319 70.00 9,867.15 4,35,467.50 4,300.00 4,18,767.5()
66,419,86 70.00 56,489.86 4,71,245,13 4,300.00 4,75,545,13
Non-finanzial assets
Current tax assets {net) 2,77B.15 6,825,76 9,603.91 2,719.04 2,778.12 5,497.16
Deferred tax assets (net) - 1,812.81 1,812.82 - 6,262.33 5,262.33
Praperty, plant and equipment - 249.88 249.88 - 758,52 750,52
Other intangible assets - 5.01 5.01 - 10,09 10.09
Other nan-flnancial pssets 4,815.82 1,123,00 5,936.82 7.387.48 1,106.71 £,454.20
7,593.58 10,014.46 17,608.43 10,106.53 10,907.78 21,814.31
Totsl bssets 74,013.84 10,084.46 84,098.30 4,81,351.17 15,207.78 4,86,5508.44
March 31, 2020 Mazch 31, 2019
Particulars Within 12 months | After 12 months Total Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
Financla) abllities
Trade peyibles 18,578.99 - 18,578.99 8,46,523.00 . 3,46,523.00
26,73191 1,07,496.93
Borrowlng {sther than debt securitles) 26,731.91 - ) 1,07,496.93 -
Other financial tiabilities 3,820.85 - 3,820,84 2,546.26 - 2,945,256
49,131.74 - 49,131.74 4,56,966.19 - 4,565,956,18
Non-financlal labilities
Current tax liabilitins {nat) - - - - - -
Provisions 312,09 212.0% 107.00 304.27 41627
Other non-financial liabilities 962.55 - 962.55 Z,850.61 - 2,980.61
1,174.64 - 1,174.54 3,007.61 308,27 2,406,858
Total liabllitles 50,306.37 - 50,306.37 4,60,063,80 30827 4,60,373.06

31A With respect to financial instruments not measured at falr value, their carrying ameunts approximates falr value
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32 Contingent labilities, Capital and other commitments

a. Legal claims

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of
fitigation risk inherent in its operations. As a result, the Company is invelved in various fitigation, arbitration
and regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. The Company has formal controls and
policies for managing legal cfaims. Based on professional legal advice, the Company provides and/or discloses
amounts in accordance with its accounting policies. At year end, the Company had several unresolved legal
claims however individeally any of the claim is not material. The aggregate value of claim against the
Company is Rs. 20,40,378 .

h. Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt 2,040.38 ' 121.76
{b} Taxation matters 8,803.43 8,903.43

¢. Capital and other commitments

Capital commitments - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for - Rs. Nil {Previous year : Rs. Nil.)
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Disclosure of Related partles as required under Ind AS 24 "Related Party Dlsclosure®

Names af related parties by whom control is exercised

Edelweiss Financial Serviees Limited Uitimate halding company
Edelwelss Rurat & Corporate Senvices Limited* Holding campany from March 29, 2019
Edelweiss Securities Limited Halding eampany tll March 29, 2015

Fellow subsldiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

EC Commodity Limitad

Ecap Equities Limized

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Custodlal Services Limitad
£delwelss tSlobal Wealth Management Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Edelweiss Securities Limited
Edalwelss Securities {IFSC} Limitad
Edalweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelwelss Insurance 8rokers Limited

(*) Edel Commodities Limited was merged into EFSL Comtrade Lmited vide Qrder of National Caripany Law Tribunal at Hyderabad, Further With effect from the
Appointed Date i.e. 01 August 2018, EFSL Comtrade Limited ond Edelweiss Business Services Limited, have been merped into Edelweiss Rural 8 Corporate Services
Limited (Formerly Edelwelss Commodities Services Ltd}. Hence all related parly transactions transacted during the year and the autstanding balances theraof, as at
the end of the year relating to the Merged are considered to be transacted with Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited and disclosed accordingly

*Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation {“the Scheme”] under Sections 230 to 232 af the Companies Act, 2013 [ the Act} and the Rules made there under ( the
&ules), as sanctioned by the National Campany Law Tribunal, Mumbal Bench vide Its orders dated 23 August 2017 and the National Company Law Teibunal,
Hyderzbad Bench vide lts arder dated 11 April 2018, Olive Business Centre Limited (“the First Transferar Company), Burlington Business Selutions Limited {*the
second Transferor Company™), Aurls Corporate Gentre Umited {"the Third Transferar Company”), Serenity Businass Park Umited {“the Fourth Transferor Company”)
and Eternity Business Centre Limitad [“the Fifth Transferor Company™) {collectively referred to as the Transferar Compantes), the whally owned subsidiaries of ECap
Equities Limited, (the Transferee Company) had been amalgamated with the Transferce Company with effect from 1 April 2017 (“the Appolnted Date”}). The Scheme
haz been effactive from 21 Aprit 2018 {"the Effective Date”}, '

*Accordingly, all the related party transactions entered durlng the year and the outstanding balances thereof as stated at the end of the year relating to the
Transferar Companies are considered ta be entered with the Transferee Company and accordingly ineluded In the related party transactions disclosure af the -
Campany
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Disclozure of Relfated parties as required under Ind AS 24

Transactions with related parties

“Related Party Disclosure” {Continved)

{ Amount in Rs, )

5r.

Nature of Transaction
Na,

Current account transactions

Related Party Nama

For the Year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year endod
March 31, 2019

1 Shortterm lpans taken from Edelwetss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4,17,094.18 2,27,054,95
2 shortterm loans repaid 1o Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited £,597,456.38 3,40,803,73
3 Margin placed with £C Commedity Limited - 3,72,471.16
Edelwelss Custadial Services Limited 2,01,093.86 4,31,562.88
4 Margin withdrawn from Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 5,32,651.74 -
EC Commadity timited - 6,82,100,74
5 Incorme from Commoditles Broking Ecap Equities Limited 34,818.79 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 8.41 -
6  Business Service Charges Income recovered fram
Edelweiss Houslng Finance Limited 5.45 -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 1.09 -
7 Interest pald onlozn Edefweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 18,123.19 21,336,298
B Interest income on Margin EC commadity Limited - 24,929.26
Edelwalss Custodlal Services Limited 17,493.60 2,202.44
%  Clearing charges paid to Edelwalss Custoddial Services Limited 50,00 15.71
EC Commodity Limited - 10724
10 Relmbursement paid to Edelwelss Rura) & Corporate Services Limited - 17,829,52
Edelweiss Finantial Services Umited - 2882
11 Relmbursement reeelved from Edefweiss Broking Limlted - B67.52
12 Costreimbursement pald to Edelwelss Broking Limited - 4,517.10
Edelweiss Financlal Services Limited(Formerly ECL) 642.81 1,851.69
Edelweiss Securities Limited 3264 233.07
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Senvices Ltd, Employees - 577.88
Ecap Equitles Limited 4,60 30,25
Edelweiss Rurat & Coyporate Sarvices Licnéted - ECSL 336,69 .
13 Rentpoidte Edelwriss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 910.89 968,29
ECap Equitles Limited ’ 664.52 381.11
Edalweiss Broking Limited 3,816.62 20.48
Edelweiss Securities Limited 68.50 -
Edefweiss Custodial Services Limited 18.15 -
ECL Flnance Limited 6C0.18 -
14 Business suppart service charges pald to Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Umited 13,279.10 25,551.87
15 Webshe related charges paid to Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited §,518.12 5,649,73
18  Fixed assots purchased frem Edejweiss Breking Limited 40.89 §2,57
Edelwelss Global Wealth Management Umited - 1,73
Edeiwelss Insurance broker Limited 1.36 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 3143
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited - 17.65
17  Fpixed assats seld to Edelweiss Housing £inance Limited - 23,19
ECL Finance Limited 640,00 -
Edelwe_[.s.s_Broklng Limited - 26.18 6.73
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33 Disclosure of Related parties as required under Ind AS 24 "Helated Party Disclosure” (Continued)

Sr.

Nature af Transaction
No.

Balances with ralated parties
18 Equity share capital held by

19  Shortterm borrowings

20 Trade Payables to

21  Other Payable

22 Interest accrued and due on loan taken

I3 Otherreceivabla from

24 Prepaid Expensas
25  Accrued interest on margin

26 Margin placed with clearing house

Related Party Name

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited

Edefweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited
ECap Equities Limited

Edelweiss Braking Limited

Edelweiss Financhal Services Limited
Edelweiss Securitles Limited

ECL Finance Umited

EC Commaodity Limited

Edelwelss Asset Management Umited
Edelwelss Custodlal Servizes Limited
Edelwelss Housing Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Umited
ECL Finanee Uimited

Edelweiss 8roking Limited

Edefweiss Securities Limited

Edelwelss Financlal Services Limited

Edelwelss Rural & Corparata Sepvices Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Sarvicas Limited
Edelwelss Securitles {IFSC) Limlted
Edelwelss Financlal Services Limlted
Edelweiss Financlal Servicas Limited

Edelwelss Custedial Services Limited

Edeiwelss Custodlal Services Limited

For the Yearended
March 31, 202C;

2,90,000.00

26,532.15

239.15
5138
118.55
3216
0.58
12.98
3.83
2.5¢
15.15
251.00
104,00
3,308,322
132.00

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

2,90,000.00

1,06,894.34
13,210,84
12063
aLo4
53.47

Q.23

1.44

364.82

85731

4,31,562,88

Note 1: Loan given/taken to/from parties and margin money placed / refund received with/ fram related parties are disclosed based on the maximum incremental
amount given/taken and placed / refund received during the repordng period.

Note 2 : Disclosure under sectlon 1836(4) of the Companles Act, 2023 for loans and guarantee : Loans have been given for general business purpase.

Note 3 : Edelweiss Business Services Limited, Edelwelss Agri Value Chaln Limited, Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited, Edelweiss Fund Advlsors & EFSL Comtrade
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34 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Campany’s capltal management policy are to ensure that the Group complies with externally imposad capital requirements
and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios In order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capltal structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic condltions and the risk characteristics of its
activities. In order to maintain or 2djust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the ameunt of dividend payment to sharzhalders, return capital to

sharehalders or issue capital securities. Na thanges have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years, However, they arg
under constant review by the Beoard.

in addition to zhove, the Campany is required to maintain minfmum networth as prescribed by various regulatory autharitles, The management ensures
that, this is complied.

Particuiars 31 viarch 2620 31 March 2019

Taotal Deht 26,731.91 1,07,486,83
Equity 33,791.92 36,186.37
Net Debt to Equity 0.79 2.97
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35 Risk Management

The company has onerations in India. Whilst risk is Inherent in the Company’s activities, It is managed through an
integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk
lirnits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitabitity. The
Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It Is also subject to various operating and business risks

Risk Management Structure

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk
management strategies and principles.

The Board has appointéd the Risk Committee which is responsible for monitoring the overall risk process within the
Company and reports to the Audit Committee

The Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles,
frameworks, policies and limits

The Global Risk Group is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an
independent control process is maintained. The Group works closely with and reports to the Risk Committee, to ensure
that procedures are compliant with the overall framework.

Cradit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss the Company may face due to current/potential inability or unwiilingness of 2
customer or counterparty to meet financial fcontractual obligations. Credit risk aiso covers the possibility of fosses
associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or counterparties. The Company has adopted a policy of
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial ioss from defaults

Liquidity Risk.

Liguidity risk emanates from the possitile mismatches due to differences in maturity and repayment profile of assets and
liabilities. To avold such a scenario, the Company has maintained cash reserves in the form of Fixed Deposits, Cash,
Loans which are caflable any time at the Company’s discretion, etc. These assets carry minimal credit risk znd can be
liquidated in a very short period of time, These would be to take care of immediate ohligations while continuing to
honour commitments as a going concern




Edetweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial stataments {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in th ousands)

35

A. Analysls of nop-derivative finaneial Hahjlitles by ramaining contractual matusities
The table below summarises the maturity preflle of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s non-derivative finaneial lfabilities as at the year end,
fiepzyments which are subject to notice 2re treated as if notice were to be given jmmediately, However, the Campany expects that the counterparties will not Yequest repayment on the earffest

35

Risk Management [continued)

date it could he required to pay.

As at March 31, 2020 Less than 3 manths | E€qual to or mora Equal to or mere Equal to or more > 2 ypars Total

than 3 months but | than 6 months but | than 12 months but

less than 5 months | fess than 12 months | lass than 3 years
Trade payobles i8,578.0% - - - - 18,578.88
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 26,731.91 - - - - 26,731.91
Other financizl liabilities 3,820.84 - - - - 3,820.84
Total undissounted non-derivative financlal fiabifities 49,131,74 - - - - 49,131,774
As at March 31, 2015 Less than 3 months | Equal to or more Equalte or mare Equal to or more >3 years Total

than 3 months but | than 6 months but | than 12 months but

iess than 6 months | less than 32 months [ less than 3 years
Teade payables 3,46,523.00 - - - - 3,46,523.60
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 1,06,854.34 - - - - 1,06,854.34
Other financiz! liahilities 3,548.84 - - . - 3,548,684
Totz! undiscounted non-derivative financial lizbilities 4,56,965.19 - - - - 4,56,966.19
Ailsk Mznagement (zontlnued)
Analysis of non-deyivative financial ssels by remarming contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's nan-desivative financial assets as at the year end.
As at March 31, 2020 Less than 3 months | Equal to ormore Equal to or mare Equal to or mare >3 years Total

than 3 months but | than B months but | than 12 months but .

less than 6 months | fessthan 22 months | less than 3 yenrs
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 39,623,34 3,250,00 6,250.00 - - 49,123.34
Trade receivahles 2,422.57 - - - - 7,422.57,
Loans - - 76,76 - - 78,76
Other financial assets 4,721.18 - 1,576.00 - 3,570,008 9,867.19
Total undiscounted nen-derlvatjve financial assets 51,767.10 3,250.08 7,901,7& - 3,570.00 65,483.86
As at March 31, 2019 Lass than 2 months | Equal to or more Equal to or more Equnl to ar mere %3 yoors Tautal

than 3 months but | than 6 months but | than 12 months but

{ess than 6 months | lessthan 12 months:  lessthan 3 years
Cash and cash equivalent ang other bank balances 18,204.21 3,250.00 5,250.00 - - 27,704.2%
Trade recelvablas 7,828,75 - - - - 782875
Loans - - 244.68 - - 244.58
Other financiaf assets 2,333.62 - 4,33,133.88 - 4,300,00 4,38,767,50
Tatal undiscounted non-derivative financial assets 2B,366.57 3,250,800 4,35,628.56 - 4,300.00 4,75,545,13
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35 Risk Management {continued)

Coilateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. They aiso shows the total
fair value of collateral, any surplus collateral (the extent to which the fair value of coliateral held is greater than the exposure to
which it relates), and the net exposure to credit risk.

As at March 31, 2020 Maximum exposure to Principal type of collateral
credit risk {carrying
amount before ECL)

Financial assets

ipans

231.97

Unsecured

Trade receivables (Gross)

12,911.03

Securities, Bank Guarantee etc,

Other financial assets

10,317.19

Unsecured

Total

23,460.19

As at March 31, 2019

Maximum exposure to
credit risk (carrying
amount before ECL}

Principal type of collatera}

Financial assets

Loans

244.68

Unsecured

Trade receivables {Gross)

28,940.36

Securities, Bank Guarantee etc.

Other financial assets

4,39,767.50

tInsecured

Total

4,68,953.54




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees tn thousands)

35 Risk Management {continued)
Analysis of Financial assets and liabilities by Industry risk concentration

Industry analysis - Risk concentration for March 31, 2020

Particulars Financial services Retail Total
Financial assets ‘

Cash and cash eguivalent 49,123.34 45,123,324
and other bank balances

Trade and other receivables 7,422.57 7,422.57
Other Financial Assets 9,867.19 . 9,867.19
Loans 76.76 76.76
Total 59,067.29 7,422.57 66,489.8b
Industry analysis - Risk concentration for March 31, 2019

Particulars Financial services Retail Total
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalentand other bank balances 27,704.21 27,704.21
Trade and otherreceivables - 7,828.75 7,828.75
Other Financial Assets 4,38,767.50 4,39,767.50
Loans 244,68 244.68
Total 4,67,716.38 7,828.75 4,75,545,13
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Risk Management {continued)

Total market risk exposure

Fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The company classifies exposures to market risk into either traging or non—trading portfolios and

manages each of those portfolios separately.

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Particulars

Carrying amount

Traded risk

Non-traded risk

Carrying amount

Traded risk

Non-traded gisk

Assets

i

Cash and cash 49,123.34 - 48,1.23.34 27,704,213 - 27704121
equivalent and other .

bank balances

Loans 76,76 - 76.76 244,68 - 244i58
Trade receivables 7,422.57 - 7,422.57 7,828.75 - 7,828!75
Other Financial assets 5,867,149 “ 9,867.19 4,39,767.50 - 4,39,767|30
Total 66,489.86 - 66,489.86 4,75,545.13 - 4,75,545]13
Liability .

Borrowings {other than Debt 26,731.91 - 28,731.91 1,07,496.93 - 1,07,496/93
Securities)

Trade payables 18,578.95 - 18,578.98 3,46,523.00 B 3,46,523:00
Dther lizbilities 3,820.84 - 3,820.84 2,846.26 - 2,946126
Total 49,131.74 - 49,131.74 4,56,966,19 - 4,56,966(18




Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in thousands)

35

Note 1

Note 2

Following table sets out availability of Group financial assets to support funding

Total carrying

Pledge as Others (Note 1} |Available as Others (Note 2)

March 31, 2020 coilateral collateral amount
Cash and cash equivalent 9,557.14 - 39,566.20 - 49,123 .34
including bank balance :
Trade receivables - - - 7,422.57 7,422 57
ioans - - 76.76 - 7636
Other financial assets - - 9,867,19 - 9,867.19
Praperty, plant and eguipment - - 245.88 - 249,88
Other non financial assets - - 5,936.82 - 5,936.82
Total assets 9,557.14 - 55,696.86 7,422.57 72,676.57

Pledge as others [Note 1) | Available as | others (Note 2} | Total carrying
March 31, 2019 collateral coliateral amount -
Cash and cash equivalent 9,550.31 - 18,153.90 - 27,_704.21
including bank balance ‘
Trade receivables - - 7,828.75 - 7,828.75
loans - - 244.68 - - 244,68
Other financial assets - 4,31,562.88 8,204.62 - 4,39,767.50
Property, plant and ecuipment - - 750.52 - 750.52
Other non financial assets - - 2,494.20 - 8,494.20
Total assets 9,550.31 4,31,562.88 43,676.67 - 4,84,785.856

Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legai of

other reason

Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the group would not consider readily
avaiiable to secure funding in the normal course of business
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37 Addltional Distiosure on Fixed Depasit

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 4000.00 {provious year: Rs, 4,060,00) have been pledged with exchanges for meating base capltal requirement
38 CostSharing

Edelwelss Financlal Services Limited, belng the kolding company along with fellaw subsidiaries incurs expenditure ke Graup mediclaim, insurance, rent,
efectricity charges ete. which Is for the comman benefit of itsalf and Its certaln subsidiaries, fellow subsidiarles including the Company. This cost 5o expended Is
reimbursed by the Company on the basls of number of employees. On the same #ines, branth running costs expended {if any) by tha Company for the banefit
of felow subsidfaries is recoverad by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditura heads [0 note 25 and 27 Include
reimburserents peid and are net of reimbursements recelved based on the manzgement's best estimate,

39 Brokerage income is disclosed net of related sub-brokerage axpenses Rs, 12,220.89 (previous year fs. 34,770.81).

40 Details of dues to Micra enterprises and Small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs. Nil {Previous year: Rs. Nif) payable to “Suppliers” registerad under the Micre, Stall and Medlum Enterprises Development Act,
2006, Na interest has been pald/ Is payable by the Cotnpany during the year to “Suppiers” registered under this Ack, The aforementioned is based on the
responses received by the Company to its Inquiries with suppliers with regard to appiicability under the sald Act

41 Corporate social responsibility (CSR):
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companfes Act, 2013:
a) Graoss amount regulrad te bz spent by the Campany during the year was Rs.Nil (Previous year: Rs.NIt}
b} Amount spent during the year on:

Yettobe

pald In
Particulars In cash {PY} cash Total
Canstructions / acqulsition of any assels - - R

On purpose cther than {i} above 04l

(N}

Note:

The Company is 2 step down whelly owned subsidinry of Edelwelss Financlal Services Limited, Edelwelss group [s conselous of its Corporata Social
Responslbility and, had aceardingly establlshed a CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundatlon" in the yaar 2008. As an amount of Rs,308,123,00 {Previous year: Rs.
225,190.00) (representing more than 2% of the consolidated profit of the group) was spent towards CSR activities during the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Carnpany has netincurred the preseribed CSR expenditura on a standalone basls during the yaar ended 31 March 2020,

42 Previous year Comparatives

Previous year's number have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm current year’s presentation and classification.
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